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REFERENCE:

Request for Proposal #FFD-657 - Tractor Drawn and Rear Mount, 

Straight Frame Aerials

ADDENDUM #3
Reference is made to Request for Proposal #FFD-657 dated 2/8/08 scheduled to be due at 3:00 PM, 4/14/08.
The following Question & Answers shall be made part of this Request for Proposal.
Note: The questions and answers pertain to both aerials unless marked otherwise.

Q: Page 2, Minimum Qualifications, Paragraph 3

Meridian Hughes Fire Apparatus Service located in Puyallup, Washington has been a Pierce Authorized service center since 2004. Meridian Hughes has EVT certified repair technicians. Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. has been a Pierce authorized sales and service center since 1987. Is this acceptable?

A: Yes

Q: Page 4, Contract Term

This section lists the contract term of two (2) years with the option to extend for four (4) additional years. Item 2 of the contract terms and conditions lists the contract term of five (5) years with one two year extension allowed. Please clarify which contract term applies to this RFP.

A: The City is seeking a two (2) year contract with the option to extend for up to four (4) additional years.

Q: Page 5, Cancellation of Orders

The City may cancel an order before delivery without penalty or charge, providing that the Vendor has not incurred any special production costs such as custom fabrication or engineering expenses in fulfilling the order.  If the City cancels the order after production has begun for a non-standard or custom order, then the Vendor may charge the customer a cancellation penalty consisting of costs incurred to date, at time of cancellation, less the amount mitigated by the sale of the purchase item(s).  An additional 10% penalty computed on the net contract price can also be enforced based on progress of the custom order with costs mitigated accordingly. Is this acceptable?

A:
An anwer will be provided next week.
Q: Page 6, Fixed Product Pricing

Allowances for increases due to mandating governing agency requirements, such as but not limited to NFPA and EPA, during the first two years of the contract must be allowed.  Documentation of required changes and costs will be provided if the situation arises.

Is this acceptable?

A:  Yes

Attachment #1, Specification for one, or more: Rear Mount, Straight Frame Aerials and Attachment #2, Specification for One or more: Tractor Drawn Aerials

Please note: Questions in this section apply to both the Rear Mount Straight Frame Aerials and Tractor Drawn Aerials unless noted otherwise. 

Q: 1.1. - In all areas applicable, the 2007 Edition of NFPA 1901, Minimum Standards For Fire Apparatus, WISHA, Federal & Washington State Department of Transportation requirements shall be met or exceeded.

American LaFrance will bid and build this apparatus using NFPA 1901 2003 which is the current edition of NFPA.  The next release of NFPA will be in 2009.  There is no 2007 edition of NFPA 1901.  

A: Change all references to 2007 edition of NFPA 1901 to “latest edition of”.

Q: 2.1.11. - All filters and service elements (including air dryers and fuel/water separators) shall be easily accessible and replaceable without removing or disconnecting other components. If necessary, filters may be remotely mounted to meet this requirement. Spin-on filters are required for fluid service unless specified otherwise or approved by the Automotive Engineer. All filters shall be heavy-duty and sized for severe service.

American LaFrance utilities two filters for the aerial hydraulics system that consists of two non-spin on cartridges.   Will the SFD automotive engineer approve of this filter? 

A:  If they are easily accessible and have easily operated shutoff valves in place to minimize fluid losses.  That depends on the filter and the application.  As long as the filter is accessible, relatively easy to change and elements are readily available, they should be acceptable.  High pressure canister filters or immersion style return filters are acceptable.  Please explain in your proposal which filters are in question and why a spin on filter is not used.  

Q: 2.2.1.1 - Overall Length - Should not exceed 678”, state exact length. 

Due to current Washington State weight laws our proposal will be on a tandem axle tractor.  This will exceed your overall length requirement.  Will an apparatus with a length of 707” or 58’11” be acceptable?

A:  An apparatus of this length will not fit into most of our stations and will not be acceptable.  

Q: 2.2.4. RMA only - Angle of departure: Should be no less than 13 degrees. This is a critical issue for the Seattle Fire Department, state angle.

Our rear mount aerial design will not allow for 13 degree angle of departure.  10 degree is what we are able to provide.  Will this be acceptable? 

A: It is not acceptable.   There are areas in the City that would cause this unit to bottom out routinely.

Q: 2.2.5 - Adequate clearance is to be provided in the center of the body to allow the apparatus to clear the crest of an 18 percent grade.

Due to Washington State weight laws and the overall length of the apparatus what is the minimum crest grade that will be acceptable?

A: The City would prefer the largest break over angle that can be provided.  The newest tiller in our fleet has a break over angle of 12 degrees which is acceptable.  

Q: 2.4.6. - Welding inspection is required by the FFD Engineer and/or SFD Fleet Manager prior to delivery of the apparatus.

Does SFD intend to travel to the factory to inspect the aerial in addition to the mid and final inspection?  Please clarify intent.

A: The intent is not to have a separate ladder inspection but rather to establish grading criteria for the acceptable appearance of welds.  Weld appearance, weld splatter, slag, etc. will be at the mid build and final inspections.

Q: 2.5.2. - The following should be chromium plated: C. Drip molds (or polished aluminum or stainless steel). 

American LaFrance will provide ROM roll up doors with an anodized drip as manufactured by the vendor.  Is this acceptable to SFD?

A:  Clear anodizing is acceptable, but not preferred. 

Q: 2.5.9 - Non aluminum and non stainless panels shall have rust preventive compounds applied to the underside and internal panels of the apparatus body.  Rust preventive components shall be highly resistant to moisture, shall not wash off with water and shall remain pliable and self-healing.  The rust preventive compound shall meet or exceed MIL SPEC #C-16173C.  “Meet or exceed” in this case means that manufacturers shall provide substantiation of their state of the art processes equal to or exceeding the MIL specification.  Provide description of manufacturers’ system. 

Our supplier is unable to match MIL Spec # you have supplied.  Please verify number.  If unable to match, can you supply us with flex numbers, salt spray numbers or other defining factors.  We used Ziebart Rustproofing and Undercoating on both your HDR and HazMat unit.  Is this option acceptable for the aerials? 

A:   This MIL spec has not changed.  Ziebart will be acceptable.

Q: 3.1.3. - The final arrangement of components in the cab shall be determined between the manufacturer and owners representative to the owner’s satisfaction. These final arrangements to be completed at the preconstruction meeting.

American LaFrance will bid our standard dash layout.  Minor switch layout and bolt on components changes can be made at the pre construction meeting.

A:  Standard dash layouts will be acceptable, with some possible switch relocations.  Please note this in your proposal for evaluation.

Q: 3.1.11. - Provide front mount mirrors, dual electric control with heat, controlled from driver’s console area, Ramco Engineering part number 6001-FFHR-750HR or equivalent. Mirrors shall be located and adjusted to stay out of the “splash” areas of the windshield and maintain a clear line of sight down each side of the apparatus for the driver in all normal driving conditions.

American LaFrance is proposing a cowl mounted Ramco #6018FFHR-750HR mirror.  Is this acceptable to SFD?

A: The Ramco 6018FFHR-750HR mirror is acceptable.

Q: 3.2.7. - AERIAL DEVICE: The Seattle Fire Department routinely performs rescue operations requiring the implementation of both Stokes and/or and trench type rescue needs. In these cases the aerial device is used as the sling point (not as a crane) but does not exceed tip load rating. As such, the City of Seattle requires documentation of the manufacturing Engineers’ approval of their aerial device for this use.

The rope roller and lifting lugs will maintain the same ratings as the aerial device as stated by the load chart affixed to the turntable control.  Is this acceptable documentation of the manufacturing Engineers approval of their aerial device? 

A:  If the engineering qualifies this particular use as acceptable with your current load rating chart(s) in writing, yes.

Q: 3.5.7. - Drive axle shall be minimum 24,000 pounds rated. 

In order to meet Washington State weight laws our proposal will have a tandem axle tractor.  Is this acceptable to the SFD?

A: It is acceptable as long as you do not exceed the overall length requirement.

Q: 3.7.4. - Air line drops-stainless steel braided hose. 

We will propose Stainless Steel air line drops outside of frame rails only.  Is this acceptable to SFD?

A: Yes

Q: Item 3.5.7 - Drive axles (two (2) required for this application) shall be minimum 24,000 pounds rated, and shall be equipped with driver controlled differential lock.

Do you want one DCDL for two rear axles or two DCDL for two rear axles?

A:  One DCDL for the primary drive axle.

Q: 12, 3.6.1 - Wheels shall be disc, ventilated, hub piloted, ten hole, and compatible with prescribed tires.

Please verify if “disc” refers to aluminum or steel wheels.  If aluminum, do you prefer all of the rear wheels be aluminum or that only the outside wheels be aluminum leaving the inside wheels steel?

A: The City would prefer to have all wheels made of steel.

Q: 3.8.2.3 - An air filter restriction gauge, vortex or equal, shall be installed on the driver’s dash.  Gauge shall be plumbed in accordance with diesel engine manufacturer’s requirements.

Is the Farr Filter Minder an approved equal?

A: The Farr Filter Minder is not acceptable.  The City would like a dash mounted pressure differential gauge.

Q: 3.8.3.3 - An Allison transmission fluid retarder shall be provided.  Retarder shall be supported via an additional crossmember bolted to the inside web (not resting on top or bottom flanges) of the frame to eliminate gasket leaks from torque loading.  

This is not Pierce’s standard and Allison has told Pierce it is no longer necessary.  Can we deviate from this request?

A: Yes, but please explain the design changes that make it no longer necessary and provide a statement guaranteeing the housing(s) will not leak. 

Q: 4.1.5. - Each compartment door or lid should be equipped with magnetic “door open” light switches.

In areas where a hinged door is required the switch will be a plunger type switch.  Is this acceptable to SFD?

A: Magnetic door switches are preferred but not mandatory.  

Q: 4.1.9. - Use all possible space in wheel well areas to accommodate 60-minute SCBA bottles. Areas not usable for SCBA bottle storage should be considered for wheel chock holders.

Will alternative to this request be acceptable if they are well defined in our specification?

A: This is SFD’s preferred placement.  Any alternatives would have to be proposed and evaluated.  

Q: 4.1.10. - Provide options for wheel chock storage area in lower sections of rear wheel well areas. Under body wheel chock storage is not preferred as they suffer rapid failure due the terrain of the City of Seattle.

Will alternative to this request be acceptable if they are well defined in our specification?

A: This is SFD’s preferred placement.  Any alternatives would have to be proposed and evaluated.  

Q: 4.3.4 - Each axle wheel well of the body shall have a one-piece full width wheel well liner with extended radius attaching a fenderette.  The wheel well liner shall be bolted to the body, firmly braced, and allow clearance for tire chains in accordance with SAE J 683 “Tire Chain Clearance-Trucks and Buses”, all axles.

Pierce’s wheel well liners are part of the sub structure of the body.  Can we supply access ports to the fender panels IPO bolt in wheel well liners?

A:  Yes this is acceptable.

Q: 4.4.10 - AIR CYLINDER STORAGE COMPARTMENTS: Four air cylinder storage compartments shall be provided, one each fore and aft of the rear axle wheel wells.  Each compartment shall include a water/weather-sealing door with a weather sealing latch, circular inner compartment tube with rubber protective matting and at a 10-degree angle down to inboard of the body.  Include 3/8” drain hole in lowest portion of rear (bottom) wall.  

Conflicts with: 


4.1.9 - Use all possible space in wheel well areas to accommodate 60-minute SCBA bottles. Areas not usable for SCBA bottle storage should be considered for wheel chock holders. Please Clarify.

A: SFD desires a minimum of four SCBA bottle holders in the rear wheel well area.  Since storage space is critical, any available room should be used for SCBA bottles or other items like wheel chock holders.

Q: 4.4.12. - AIR CYLINDER STORAGE COMPARTMENTS: A minimum of four air cylinder storage compartments shall be provided, one each fore and aft of the tiller steer axle wheel wells. Each compartment shall include a water/weather-sealing door with latch, circular inner compartment tube with rubber protective matting and at a 10-degree angle down to inboard of the body. Include 3/8” drain hole in lowest portion of rear (bottom) wall.

Please note that NFPA 1901 (2003) 8.8.2 requires one spare SCBA cylinder for each seating position in the cab.  This would imply that storage is required for a total of seven cylinders.

A:  SFD Operating Guidelines exceed NFPA (which are minimum) standards.

Q: 4.4.17. - Transverse/Stokes Compartment: At the forward end of the body shall be a transverse compartment for storage of a Stokes rescue basket. This compartment is for storage of a fully-laden rescue Stokes, ropes, and other high angle rescue equipment. If not incorporated into the body compartments, both right and left ends, shall have doors with a positive latching mechanism, hydraulic shock “hold open” devices, and be incorporated into the compartment open warning system. Approximate size shall be within the 96” (body width) x 42” fore-to-aft x 14” tall, overall.  (Size includes more storage space than is required for the Stokes unit.)

We can meet the basic intent of you specification, however certain locations for the Stokes basket may not meet your requirement for the fore and aft dimension.  Will alternatives be considered?

A:   The stokes basket storage width is not changeable as the baskets are fixed dimensions and do not collapse.  Additionally, they are loaded with equipment that is required to provide such a rescue.  While SFD is not concerned if the location moves, it cannot change the dimension.

Q: 4.4.18. - It is preferred that a stainless cover/door with latch shall be provided over each outrigger control panel and any external transverse/Stokes storage.

Door design will be dependant on location of the stokes basket

A: Alternatives should be noted in your proposal.

Q: 5.2.15.5 - The extension/retraction cables shall have a minimum safety factor of 8:1 and shall be a minimum of the following diameters:

Section
Diameter

Inner Mid
7/16”
Outer Mid
¼”
Fly



¼”

Pierce cables have been tested to a 5:1 safety factor as prescribed in NFPA 1901 20.20.3 but our cables exceed the spec for diameter.

They are as follows.

The extension/retraction cables shall be: 7-flex galvanized wire rope with stainless steel threaded ends and shall have the following characteristics:

- Lower mid Section .50" diameter with 26,200# nominal design strength

- Mid Section .38" diameter with 14,880# nominal design strength

- Fly Section .31" diameter with 10,380# nominal design strength

Is this acceptable to the Seattle Fire Department?

A:  SFD and FFD will review the section prior to scoring.  Provide your proposal with this statement included.  It will be evaluated one to one with the other proposals as part of the overall score.

Q: 5.2.15.8 - Aerial waterway shall extend/retract with aerial ladder controls.  Means shall be provided to incorporate a positive “pinning”, or connection, of the aerial waterway locking it to the outer end of both the outer mid (3rd) and the fly (tip) sections.  This feature shall be a quick release holding device that shall not require tools nor more than one person to accomplish.  Waterway shall be equipped with shutoff and drain valves in easy reach, or control of, the aerial operator(s).  Describe the device used to obtain a positive latch.

Were do you want this waterway control to be located?  Base of aerial, pedestal, aerial tip?

A:  The pinning control should be at the aerial tip or at the operator’s control station.

Q: 5.2.17.1 - FOLDING STEPS:  Two (2) aluminum folding steps shall be installed on the fly section of the ladder to provide footing for an operator stationed at the tip of the fly section.  Each step shall have a minimum surface area of 35 square inches and a minimum design load of 500 lbs.  Locks shall be provided to secure the steps in the stowed position.  Steps shall be 59 inches down from the tip of the top fly.

Are the spring loaded locking mechanisms that come standard on these steps adequate to meet this requirement?

A:  We are unaware of what your standard mechanism is.  Spring loaded locking mechanism is acceptable as long as the spring hold the step securely in both the up and down positions.

Q: 5.2.17.8 - A waterway mounted Elkhart remote control nozzle, articulating, with remote controls, and capable of 1,000 GPM, include smooth bore nozzle

Do you mean a remote control monitor and nozzle with additional stacked tip set?

A:  Yes.

Q: 5.2.18.2 - 5 - Momentary safety switch, with red indicator light.

What does this refer to?

A:  The EPU.

5.2.20.15.3 RMA and 5.3.21.17 TDA - Consideration shall be given, and testing certification provided thereof, that the aerial shall be used for decontamination corridors (i.e., trapping of fully extended ladder and use of 1¾” hand lines on rungs with the device at 0 elevation and full extension), Stokes rescue, and basket hitches will be attached to top rungs.

We are willing to work with SFD to accomplish this requirement.  However this section does not contain enough information to ensure compliance on the manufactures part.  The bottom line is the proposed aerial devise  can with stand a maximum overturning moment that cannot be exceeded, NO EXCEPTION”

A:  SFD Mass Decontamination Protocol provides that we use our aerial ladders as a tunnel tool, this is a long standing Standard Operating Procedure.  Aerial ladders with K bracing that meet or exceed NFPA 1901 have proven to be adequate for the purpose.  Provide what you can in writing and it will be evaluated accordingly.

Q: 5.3.16.3 - SAFETY RAILING - TURNTABLE: A turntable platform shall be provided. The railing should be 42” high fore/both sides, with open “corners”. These corners shall have solid “gate” sections as a gateway, removable for passageway. Chain type “gateways” shall not be accepted due to suspect safety ratings and premature wear.

Please provide additional information on “These corners shall have solid “gate” sections as a Gateway.”  Is the city looking for a self closing gate similar to what is used in a tower platform or will a simple mansaver bar be sufficient?

A: A mansaver bar is acceptable.

Q: 5.3.18.2 - The following features shall be provided, clearly identified and suitably illuminated for ease of operation in light or dark circumstances. Match the light on the control pedestal to the step lighting for better visibility at the control pedestal and floor area of the turntable:

We will comply with this request, however please note that NFPA 1901 (2003) 20.6.1.7 requires a flowmeter in the aerial waterway.  We do not see this requirement in your specification. 

A: NFPA is a minimum requirement.  Anything required by NFPA 1901 must be included in the unit regardless if it is called out individually in the specification.  Please refer to section 1.1. 

Q: 5.3.21.1 - The aerial device shall be tested and certified by a nationally recognized third party testing and certification company in compliance with the latest edition of the NFPA Standard #1914 during construction and before shipment.  NFPA 1911(2007) REPLACES NFPA 1914.

A:   Replace references to NFPA 1914 with NFPA 1911.

Q: 5.5.7 - A 6-position 3010R FireComm in cab headset communications system shall be installed, positions #5 and #6 are to be considered as the ladder operator position and one of the rear wall seats.


And 5.2.17.4 - COMMUNICATION SYSTEM:  Provide and install a heavy duty, weatherproof, communication system between the tip and the aerial operator’s console.  Prefer FireComm 106-0500-25/106-0500-10 or approved equivalent.  The communication speaker on the tip shall require no operator attention to transmit or receive.  The transmitting/receiving volume controls and push to talk button shall be located on the master control box at the aerial operator’s console.

Are these two communication systems to be tied together?

A:  No.  There needs to be a FireComm jack at the aerial control station but there also needs to be a communication system so the aerial control station can communicate with the aerial tip without street interference.

Q: 5.5.10.1 - One (1) Honda Portable generator, EG2200X (120V, 2200Watt) or approved equal.

We are unable to identify this model.  Is a model EG2500XK1A an approved alternative?

A:  Yes.

Q: 5.5.10.13 - Two (2) 50’ stringlights-12/3, “Woodhead” for incandescent bulbs.  Provide 50 watt fluorescent long life, low consumption, heavy duty bulbs for each position on each string.

We are unable to identify this product even after communication with Woodhead.  Can you please supply a model number?  

A:  Woodhead Model #323526.  SFD uses the standard Woodhead string light with incandescent bulbs.  The incandescent bulbs have been removed and replaced with compact florescent bulbs to draw less power.

Q: 6.2.5 - The tailpipe shall terminate to the street side.  Provision shall be made to accommodate Nederman style exhaust extraction currently used by Seattle Fire Department stations.  The Nederman system requires a magnetic “target” that is to be located 24” vertically above the horizontal centerline of the exhaust outlet and within 3” horizontally above the vertical center line of the exhaust outlet.  The target must be located on a fixed panel

1.  Please verify “Street Side” equals “Drivers Side”

2.  Do you want the vehicle manufacturer to supply the “target”?

A: 1. Street side is the same as driver’s side.

     2.  Yes.  The target can be supplied by either the manufacturer or the dealer.

Q: 7.5.3. - Manuals shall be provided and shall include detailed operating procedures, installation guidelines, pictorial blowup drawings for parts breakdown, adjustment recommendations, troubleshooting analysis, fluid and component specifications to facilitate ease of understanding and service. Two (2) sets per unit shall be supplied.

We will supply two sets of manuals from the manufacture; however we can not warrant that the generator manuals will meet expectation of the SFD.

A: The City is aware that the manufacturer can not be responsible for the content of manuals from subcontractors.

Q: 7.5.19 - EXTERIOR OUTLET PLUGS:  Outlet receptacles shall be located on the outside of the body and shall not be located inside of the side compartments.  All outlets shall be 20 ampere and supplied with 12 gauge stranded wire with NEMA L15-20 amp 120 volt receptacles (standard 120 volt duplex style-NOT TWIST LOCK).  The outlets shall be located as follows:

Are any of the exterior outlet plugs to be protected by GFCI breakers or are they to have LED indicator lights showing they are “live”?

A:  Provide LED indicator lights indicating “live” current available.  All exterior 120 VAC outlets must be protected by GFCI breakers.  CGFI outlets are not acceptable

NOTE: Change the part number to 5-20.

Q: 8.3.17 - Provide and install one MSA Evolution 5000 thermal imaging camera and storage/recharging bracketing and indicator light in a location to be determined at pre-construction.

The MSA Evolution 5000 thermal imaging camera is not available anymore and has been replaced with the Evolution 5200. Is it acceptable to provide the Evolution 5200 thermal imaging camera?

A: Change this to ISI Avon 3500 and delete reference to MSA.

Q: 8.4.6 - The Pierce Basic One Year warranty will start when the unit leaves the factory for delivery.  The duration of this warranty is 14 months.  The extra 2 months is to cover the time from when the unit leaves the factory to when the unit is delivered to the customer. The Basic One Year warranty is attached. Is this acceptable?  If this is not acceptable the City must provide a time table for placing the vehicle in service after receipt of the apparatus.  This cannot be an open ended time frame. 

A: The City is looking for a basic warranty of one year.  The City will make every effort to complete inspection as quickly as possible.  If the manufacturer can guarantee that it will take no more then 2 months to ship the unit, make whatever additions or modifications are needed at the local dealer, and repair all discrepancies found during vehicle check in at the Seattle Fire Garage, then it is acceptable.  The City can no more take responsibility for the time involve in shipping, dealer prep and corrective action then the Manufacturer can take responsibility for the City’s inspection time.

Q: 8.4.9 - The seller can not take responsibility for all transportation. The seller is not authorized to service components such as the engine, transmission, and drive train, therefore cannot take responsibility for all transportation. Is this acceptable?

A: The City is not asking the seller to do the work of repair to items not of your manufacture.  The City expects the prime contractor to take responsibility for the warranty repair of all items on the truck.   

Please define “respond”. We interpret this to mean to respond by phone or email. Response of this type will be done for out of service issues within 24 hours. Any other issue is not considered an emergency and may take longer for a response. Is this acceptable?

A:  We expect a response to requests for service, especially if it is out of service for a warranty issue.  The type of response would depend on the circumstance of a given problem, not a corporate protocol.  The City’s definition for respond is that we would expect the dealer / manufacturer to contact the City via phone or email within 24 hours of a problem being reported to them, with a course of action on how the problem will be resolved.

Q: 8.4.10 - Minor warranty repairs that can be done in one (1) hour or less can be performed by a qualified service technician of the City of Seattle with approval from the contractor. Is this acceptable?

A: Yes

Q 8.4.10 - If the City of Seattle performs authorized warranty work they will be reimbursed at the listed shop rate with the exception of repairs that have a flat rate. Is this acceptable?

A: Yes, for the remainder of 2008.  Expect the shop rate to go up for 2009 and beyond.

Q: 8.4.10 - The seller can not take responsibility for all transportation. The seller is not authorized to service components such as the engine, transmission, and drive train, therefore cannot take responsibility for all transportation. Is this acceptable?

A: No.  The contract will be with the dealer not with the engine or transmission manufacturer.  This only covers transportation for warranty service when the vehicle needs to be taken back to your shop for repair.   

Q: 8.5.1 and 8.5.3 - Please see the question addressed for Attachment #3, Page 4, D. Responsibility of Contractor, Item 3. This question also applies to these sections.

Q: 8.6.1 - This section lists the contract term of two (2) years with the option to extend for four (4) additional years. Item 2 of the contract terms and conditions lists the contract term of five (5) years with one two year extension allowed. Please clarify which contract term applies to this RFP.

A: The City is seeking a two (2) year contract with the option to extend for up to four (4) additional years.

Attachment #3, Requirements for Award and Delivery

Q: Page 2, 4. Special Provisions, Item e

A list of parts exclusively manufactured by Pierce can not be provided.  Parts exclusively manufactured by Pierce Manufacturing are available from the manufacturing facility located in Appleton, Wisconsin.  An assortment of exclusively manufactured parts are stocked on the Pacific Coast.  If a part is not in stock on the Pacific Coast it will be ordered by the dealer representative directly from Pierce. Is this acceptable? 

A: Yes, the City does not expect the dealers to have every part made in stock.  We do expect the dealers to have a good supply of consumable parts and parts that are vulnerable to damage.
NOTE:  Page 2, 4. Liquidated Damages, Item f – Liquidated Damages - All fire apparatus, trucks or vehicles shall be delivered within the number of days specified by the seller on her/his proposal.  The seller agrees to pay a late delivery assessment for any delay in the vehicle’s delivery or delay in receipt of the properly completed delivery documents after ten (10) days beyond the required delivery date shown on the City of Seattle purchase order.  Damages amounting to $240.00 per calendar day per vehicle shall be assessed to the seller for the delays mentioned above.  The seller shall notify the City of Seattle Purchasing Services with the actual delivery date for the calculation of damages.

This amount may be deducted from the invoice prior to the invoice submittal, and clearly displayed on the invoice as a deduction.

Q: Page 2, 5. Design Requirements, Item b

Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. will not be solely responsible for the design of all features. Is this acceptable?

A: The manufacturer can not be held responsible for components he does not design and manufacture.  However, the manufacturer is responsible for all proprietary components and designs. 

Q: Page 3, B. Liability of Contractor, Item 3.a

The Pierce Basic One Year warranty will start when the unit leaves the factory for delivery. The duration of this warranty is 14 months. The extra 2 months is to cover the time from when the unit leaves the factory to when the unit is delivered to the customer. The Basic One Year warranty is attached. Is this acceptable?  If this is not acceptable the City must provide a time table for acceptance of the apparatus.  This cannot be an open ended time frame.  This requirement also conflicts with the warranty commencement date verbiage listed in Attachment #1 page 49 item 8.4.9 and Attachment #2 page 51 item 8.4.6.  Please clarify which warranty commencement date will be required.

A: See item 8.4.6 above.

Q: Page 3, B. Liability of Contractor, Item 3.c

The Pierce Basic One Year warranty will start when the unit leaves the factory for delivery. The duration of this warranty is 14 months. The extra 2 months is to cover the time from when the unit leaves the factory to when the unit is delivered to the customer. The Basic One Year warranty is attached. Is this acceptable?  If this is not acceptable the City must provide a time table for placing the vehicle in service after receipt of the apparatus.  This cannot be an open ended time frame.  This requirement also conflicts with the warranty commencement date verbiage listed in Attachment #1 page 49 item 8.4.9, Attachment #2 page 51 item 8.4.6. and Attachment #3 page 3, B Liability of Contractor Item 3.b.  Please clarify which warranty commencement date will be required.

A: See item 8.4.6 above.

Q: Page 3, B. Liability of Contractor, Item 3.e

Is the City requesting a ten (10) year extended warranty in this section? The requirements describe the Pierce Basic warranty. If a ten (10) year extended warranty is required, the cost of the warranty will be added to the proposal price.  

A:  Please quote all extended warranties offered in the options section.

Q: Page 3, C. Requirements of Delivery, Item 2

How long is the City’s acceptance period? 

A: Acceptance inspection and testing usually takes one week.

Q: Page 4, D. Responsibility of Contractor, Item 2

If the City of Seattle drives either unit proposed from the factory to the customer location, the City will be fully responsible for the apparatus and equipment and must provide proof of insurance and payment in full prior to the City representatives leaving the factory with the unit(s). Is this acceptable?

A: Delete the line “A drive-away provision shall be offered, using the Seattle Fire Department to assist in the delivery from the factory to Seattle.”  City personnel will not drive the vehicle from the factory.

Q: Page 4, D. Responsibility of Contractor, Item 3

The way we read this is that the City of Seattle wants a delivery engineer on site for road and operational acceptance and to orient the four shifts plus the mechanics for a total of 5 days.  With past deliveries to the City of Seattle these two operations were not completed on the same days or even in the same week.  Road and operational acceptance was done prior to the dates set aside for training.  Also, acceptance did not take five days?  We can make a person available to cover all needs but please clarify.

A:  Acceptance tests are done one time per apparatus not on five consecutive days. The City of Seattle Fire Garage will do the initial inspection.  SFD will perform the road and operational acceptance test.  Vendor / manufacturer participation is not required at this time

a. Do you need a person on site for 5 days to do road and operational acceptance?

A:  SFD uses a four platoon shift, overtime rules apply thereby impacting the ability to double up training shifts for Operations Personnel.  One added day is for any orientation needed by our Emergency Vehicle Technicians.  In the event of double (or greater) orders, this of course would be reduced.

b. If not, how long will you need this person?

A:  See above.

c. Will acceptance be done in the same week and on the same days as orientation?

A:  SFD & the FFD Fire Garage try to do acceptance in conjunction with orientation.  Due to other training classes it is not “always” possible.  We will work to minimize your out of factory time.

d. If not, is it required it be the same person?

A: No.

Q: Page 5, E. Delivery Date, Item 2

The units proposed may be driven from the factory in Wisconsin during the winter months, depending on when the order is placed. Is this acceptable?

A:  If the undersides of the vehicle are sprayed with a protective treatment that can later be removed (i.e., by steam cleaning or pressure washing).  Seattle is bordered on two sides by water, salt on one and fresh on the other.  Any added exposure to chemicals is not desired.

Q: Page 6, I. Road Acceptance Test, Item 1 b

If damage to the apparatus, while in the customer’s possession during the acceptance testing period but prior to customer acceptance, occurs at no fault of the manufacturer it will be the responsibility of the city.

A: Correct

Attachment 4, Insurance Requirements and Transmittal Sheet 

Q: Page 1, Item 1, Commercial General Liability (CGL)

Exception is taken to: “Contractual”

Replace with: “Contractual Liability for bodily injury and property damage.”

Is this acceptable?

A: Yes

Page 1, Item 1, Commercial General Liability (CGL)

Exception is taken to: “Stop Gap/Employers Liability”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following Employers Liability coverage for the state of WA under Workers Compensation and Employers Liability policy Number TC2NUB117D756507:

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by accident, each accident

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by disease, policy limit

$1,000,000Bodily Injury by disease, each employee”

Is this acceptable?

A: We have amended the insurance requirement to reflect the substance of the requested change, see the revised insurance requirements below.
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Page 1, Item 1, Commercial General Liability (CGL)

Exception is taken to: “$1,000,000 each Occurrence Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following coverage:

$1,000,000 Each occurrence Bodily injury and Property Damage Liability

$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate

$5,000,000 General Aggregate

$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury”

Is this acceptable?

A: Not necessary as we agree to delete “Fire/Tenant Legal” and “Independent Contractors.”  
Page 1, Item 1, Automobile Liability

Exception is taken to: “$1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following Commercial Automobile Liability Coverage (ISO Form CA0001 (10 01) Symbol 1 (Any Auto): 

$1,000,000 Each Accident Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit”

Is this acceptable?

A: We have amended the insurance requirement to reflect the substance of the requested change, see the revised insurance requirements.

Page 2, Item 2, City of Seattle as Additional Insured

Exception is taken to this entire paragraph. 

Replace with: “The City of Seattle will be included as Additional Insured – Designated Person or Organization for General Liability when required by written contract subject to policy terms, conditions and exclusions.”

Is this acceptable?

A: No, the primary and non-contributory limits requirement language must remain.
Page 2, Item 3, No Limitation of Liability

Delete this section: “for the full available limits of liability maintained by vendor, whether those limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise. Vendor expressly understands and agrees that this provision shall override any limitation of liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and Vendor.”

Is this acceptable?

A: No

Page 2, Item 6, Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Exception is taken to: “Any self-insured program or any deductible in excess of $50,000 ($10,000 of blank) must be disclosed and is subject to approval by the City’s Risk Management Division.”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc.’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy is subject to a $3,000,000 Self Insured Retention per occurrence for Products Liability and a $250,000 Self Insured Retention per occurrence for all other claims.”

Is this acceptable?

A:  The preceding statement on the insurance certification will satisfy the disclosure requirement.

Page 2, Item 7, Notice of Cancellation

Delete this section: “Has an interest in any loss which may occur”

Is this acceptable?

A:  This is merely language in the statutory requirement provided for informational purposes.

Page 2, Item 7, Notice of Cancellation

Exception is taken to: “Written notice of cancellation must therefore be actually delivered or mailed to the City not less than 45 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium). As respects surplus lines placements, written notice of cancellation shall be delivered not less than 30 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium)”

Replace with: “Certificate of Insurance will provide the following:

Should any of the above described policies be cancelled before the expiration date thereof, the issuing insurer will endeavor to mail 30 days written notice to the certificate holder named to the left (City of Seattle), but failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability of any kind upon the insurer, its agents, or representatives.”

Is this acceptable?

A: The referenced State statute for licensed (admitted) insurers specifies a statutory means and minimum notice period.  Failure to comply with the statute means that cancellation would not be applicable to, in this case, the City. Amending the insurance requirement has no effect as to the statutory notice of cancellation requirements as respects licensed insurers.

Page 2, Item 10, Evidence of Insurance

Delete this section: “At any time upon the City’s request, Vendor shall also cause to be furnished a copy of declarations pages and schedules of forms and endorsements to all policies or a full and certified copy of policies.”

Is this acceptable?

A: No.  (Note: We would only exercise this right should we tender a claim invoking additional insured status for defense and indemnity and either be denied coverage or provided coverage under a reservation of rights.)

Attachment 5, Contract - Terms and Conditions 

Page 3, Item 12

Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. does not have a “Manufacturer’s Current Price List” available. Is this acceptable?

A:   Yes

Page 5, Item 23

The title of goods received will be transferred to the City of Seattle after payment in full has been made, not with delivery of the unit. Is this acceptable?

A:  An anwer will be provided next week
Page 7, Item 26

"The Customer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Pierce, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, from any and all claims, costs, judgments, liability, loss, damage, attorneys' fees or expenses of any kind or nature whatsoever (including, but without limitation, personal injury and death) to all property and persons caused by, resulting from, arising out of or occurring in connection with the Customer's purchase, installation or use of goods sold or supplied by Pierce which are not caused by the sole negligence of Pierce."

The above is Pierce’s standard indemnify language. Is this acceptable in place of Item 26?

A:   No

Page 7, Item 27-1, Insurance

Exception is taken to: “Contractual Liability”

Replace with: “Contractual Liability for bodily injury and property damage”

Is this acceptable?

A:  Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-1, Insurance 

Exception is taken to: “Stop Gap/Employers Liability”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following Employers Liability coverage for the state of WA under Workers Compensation and Employers Liability policy Number TC2NUB117D756507: 

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by accident, each accident

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by disease, policy limit

$1,000,000 Bodily Injury by disease, each employee

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-1,Insurance 

Exception is taken to: “$1,000,000 per Occurrence”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following coverage: Commercial General Liability Occurrence Form LX9641 (10-05):

$1,000,000 Each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability

$1,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$5,000,000 General Aggregate

$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-2, Insurance

Exception is taken to: “Automobile Liability, Watercraft Liability and/or Aircraft Liability”

Replace with: “Commercial Automobile Liability”

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-2, Insurance

Exception is taken to: “Of a minimum of $500,000 per occurrence”

Replace with: “Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. maintains the following Commercial Automobile Liability Coverage (ISO Form CA0001 (10 01) Symbol 1 (Any Auto): 

$1,000,000 Each Accident Bodily Injury and Property Damage Combined Single Limit”

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-4, Insurance

Exception is taken to: “The insurance as provided under items (1) and (2) above shall include by endorsement the City of Seattle as an additional insured (as respects item (1) per ISO form CG 20 10 or CG 20 26 or equivalent additional insured endorsement wording or equivalent blanket additional insured policy wording.”

Replace with: “The City of Seattle will be included as Additional Insured-Designated Person or Organization for General Liability when required by written contract subject to policy terms, conditions and exclusions per endorsement form CG 20 26 11 85.”

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-4, Insurance

Delete this section: “And such additional insured status for the City shall apply as respects the full limits of all valid and collectible Automobile Liability, Watercraft Liability and or Aircraft Liability insurance whether primary, excess, contingent or otherwise. 

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-4, Insurance

Exception is taken to: “Shall be primary insurance as respects the City, and any other insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City shall be excess and non-contributory with the Contractors insurance.”

Replace with: “General Liability coverage will be primary insurance as respects the City.”

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Page 7, Item 27-4, Insurance

Delete this section: “It is specifically agreed that the insurance requirements in this section 2.18 shall override any limitation of the liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and the Contractor and that no Contractors insurer shall assert the right to invoke any such limitation.”

Is this acceptable?

A: Delete from the terms & conditions

Q: The minimum qualifications require that we have a full time service and parts and facilities that can honor warranties within 50 miles of the department center.  If we do not have such a facility, but will allow the Fire Department or City to perform Warranty work along with our reimbursement, will we be eligible to bid?

A:
The City does not have the ability to be the warranty service provider for a vendor.  If you do not have a facility within the 50 miles radius, you will not be eligible to bid.  Vendors may subcontract with another company to fulfill this requirement.
The due date for this Request for Proposal has been updated to 3:00 PM, 4/29/08.

In all other respects, the Request for Proposal remains unchanged.

Company Name:  _____________________________________

Print Name:  ________________________________________

Authorized Signature:  ____________________________Date:  ____________________

Purchasing and Contracting Services Division

700 Fifth Ave., Suite 4112, Post Office Box 94687, Seattle, Washington 98124-4687
Purchasing: Tel:  (206) 684-0444 TDD:  (206) 615-0476  Fax: (206) 233-5155
Contracting: Tel:  (206) 684-0430 TDD:  (206) 615-0476  Fax: (206) 684-8286
Website:   www.cityofseattle.net/contract/ 
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Insurance Requirements and Transmittal Sheet
    Attachment No. 4
Revised

City of Seattle




Purchasing Services
REF: RFP-FFD-657

[image: image1.png]





 VENDOR: SEND THIS FORM TO YOUR AGENT/BROKER

INSURANCE AGENT/BROKER: (1) Complete these fields: 



*REQUIRED FIELDS

*Name:      


Title:      

*Organization        

*Email:      

*Telephone:      

*Fax:        

(2) attach certificate of insurance with additional insured endorsement or blanket additional insured policy wording; and (3) send to each of the following:


		 (  The City of Seattle

		(  The City of Seattle



		     Risk Management Division

		Purchasing Services Division


Attn: Pam Tokunaga

P.O. Box 94687


Seattle, WA  98124-4687


FAX:  (206) 386-0068


Email: pam.tokunaga@seattle.gov 



		     P.O. Box 94669

		



		     Seattle Municipal Tower Suite 4350

		



		     Seattle, WA 98124-4669

		



		     Fax: (206) 615-0071

		



		     Email: bill.vaughn@seattle.gov


		





1. Upon award of the contract, Vendor shall, at its sole expense and for the entire term of the contract, provide insurance to the City of Seattle (“City”) as specified below in 7 days or the City may withdraw its intent to award:


( Commercial General Liability (CGL) Insurance including • Premises/Operations • Products/Completed Operations • Personal/Advertising Injury • Contractual Liability for bodily injury and property damage • Stop Gap/Employers Liability.  Minimum limits of liability:  $ 1,000,000 each Occurrence Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage except: 


		  $1,000,000

		Each Offense Personal/Advertising Injury



		  $1,000,000

		Products/Completed Operations Aggregate



		  $5,000,000

		General Aggregate



		  $1,000,000


  $1,000,000


  $1,000,000

		Employers Liability: Bodily Injury by accident, each accident

Employers Liability: Bodily Injury by disease, policy limit


Employers Liability: Bodily Injury by disease, each employee





( Automobile Liability insurance, including coverage for ISO Symbol 1 (Any Auto): Minimum limit of liability  FORMCHECKBOX 
 $500,000  FORMCHECKBOX 
$1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily Injury and property damage. (If neither box checked, minimum limit of liability of $500,000 applies.) 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Garage Liability insurance, including coverage for garage operations arising from premises/operations, product/completed operations, contracts, owned vehicles, non-owned vehicles and damage to vehicles owned by others (bailment): Minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage.  (Note: Garage Liability may substitute for both CGL and Automobile Liability insurance.)


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Increased CGL and Business Automobile Liability or Garage Liability insurance limits of liability of 


$     .  This minimum total limit of liability requirement may be satisfied with increased primary insurance limits 


or primary limits in combination with primary and Excess/Umbrella Legal liability insurance limits.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Pollution Liability insurance: Minimum limit of liability of  FORMCHECKBOX 
 $1,000,000   FORMCHECKBOX 
 $       each claim.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 In-Transit Pollution Liability under Automobile or Garage Liability insurance with  FORMCHECKBOX 
 CA 99 28  FORMCHECKBOX 
 MCS-90


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Employee Dishonesty Liability insurance: Minimum limit of liability of $       each occurrence.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Dealer’s Physical Damage insurance to cover City vehicles in vendor’s custody, including while in transit: minimum limit of liability of $       each occurrence. The City of Seattle shall be a loss payee.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 All Risks Property insurance to cover City property in vendor’s care, custody, and control: Minimum limit of liability of $      subject to a maximum deductible of $     .  The City of Seattle shall be a loss payee with Mortgagee Clause.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other: Umbrella/Excess Liability, if required, to increase CGL/AL limit to$5,000,000. 


2. City of Seattle as Additional Insured: The CGL and Business Automobile liability insurance shall include the City of Seattle as an additional insured for primary and non-contributory limits.


3. No Limitation of Liability: Insurance coverage and limits of liability as specified herein are minimum coverage and limit of liability requirements only.  They shall not be construed to limit the liability of Vendor or any insurer for any claim that is required to be covered hereunder.  Moreover, the City shall be an additional insured, where additional insured status is required, for the full available limits of liability maintained by vendor, whether those limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.  Vendor expressly understands and agrees that this provision shall override any limitation of liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and Vendor.

4. Claims Made Form:  If any policy is written on a claims made form, the retroactive date shall be prior to or coincident with the effective date of this contract.  Claims made coverage shall be maintained by the Vendor for a minimum of three (3) years following the expiration or earlier termination of this contract, and the Vendor shall provide the City with evidence of insurance for each annual renewal.  If renewal of the claims made form of coverage becomes unavailable or economically prohibitive, the Vendor shall purchase an extended reporting period (“tail”) or execute another form of guarantee acceptable to the City to assure financial responsibility for liability assumed under the contract.

5. Requirement for Workers Compensation Insurance.  The State of Washington is a monopolistic state where organizations are required to purchase workers' compensation insurance from the state unless they are an authorized self-insurer (see http://www.lni.wa.gov/ClaimsInsurance/RatePremium/AboutWorkersComp/default.asp ). The Vendor shall insure its liability for industrial injury to its employees in accordance with the provisions of RCW 51. The Vendor shall also be responsible for Workers’ Compensation Insurance for any sub-vendor or subcontractor that provides services under the contract.  If the Contract requires working on or around a navigable waterway, if legally required to do so in order to be in compliance with Federal Statutes, the Vendor shall secure United States Longshore and Harbor Workers (USL&H) coverage and/or coverage for Jones Act.


6. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Any self-insurance program or any deductible in excess of $ 50,000 ($10,000 if blank) must be disclosed and is subject to approval by the City’s Risk Management Division.  Should the Vendor be self-insured, Vendor shall state in writing that it will protect and defend the City as an additional insured within its self-insured layer and advise to whom a tender of a claim should be directed.   


7. Notice of Cancellation:   Under RCW 48.18.290 (1) (a) and (b) (“Cancellation by insurer”) applicable to insurers licensed to do business in the State of Washington, the City, as a certificate holder for the insurance requirements specified herein and an additional insured, has an interest in any loss which may occur; written notice of cancellation must therefore be actually delivered or mailed to the City not less than 45 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).  As respects surplus lines placements, written notice of cancellation shall be delivered not less than 30 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).

8. Qualification of Insurers:  Insurers shall maintain A.M. Best’s ratings of A- VII unless procured as a surplus lines placement under RCW chapter 48.15, or as may otherwise be approved by the City.


9. Changes in Insurance Requirements: The City shall have the right to periodically review the adequacy of coverages and/or limits of liability in view of inflation and/or a change in loss exposures and shall have the right to require an increase in such coverages and/or limits upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the Vendor.  Should Vendor, despite its best efforts, be unable to maintain any required insurance coverage or limit of liability due to deteriorating insurance market conditions, it may upon thirty (30) days prior written notice request a waiver of any insurance requirement, which request shall not be unreasonably denied.


10. Evidence of Insurance:  

(   A Certificate of liability insurance evidencing coverages, limits of liability and other terms and conditions as specified herein;


(   An attached additional insured endorsement or blanket additional insured wording to the CGL or Garage Liability insurance policy.


At any time upon the City’s request, Vendor shall also cause to be furnished a copy of declarations pages and schedules of forms and endorsements to all policies or a full and certified copy of policies.


Send evidence of insurance to the City at the addresses at the top of this form. If any questions or issues, contact the City of Seattle Risk Management Division at (206) 386-0071 or by email at riskmanagement@seattle.gov .


NOTE: CERTIFICATES WITHOUT ATTACHED ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED WORDING WILL NOT BE APPROVED!
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